ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 15, 2003
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Kelly Wl f
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 25(FIN)
"An Act relating to the acquisition of teachers' housing by
regi onal educational attendance areas and to teachers' housing
|l oan prograns in the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation; and
providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssi on Appoi nt ees

Mar k Doner - Pal mer
Thomas Lamal - Fair banks

- CONFI RVATI ON('S) ADVANCED
SARS UPDATE

- HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: SB 25

SHORT TI TLE: TEACHERS' & NURSES HOUSI NG AHFC LOANS
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) W LKEN

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2003



Jrn-Dat e
01/ 21/ 03
01/ 21/ 03

01/ 21/ 03
02/ 12/ 03
02/ 12/ 03
02/ 12/ 03
02/ 24/ 03
02/ 24/ 03
02/ 24/ 03
02/ 26/ 03

02/ 26/ 03
02/ 26/ 03
02/ 26/ 03
02/ 26/ 03
03/ 06/ 03

03/ 06/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/11/03

03/11/03
03/12/03

03/12/03

03/ 12/ 03
03/13/03

03/13/03

03/ 13/ 03

03/13/03
03/ 17/ 03

03/31/03
03/31/03
03/31/03
03/31/03
03/31/03

03/31/03

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

Jr n- Page
0021
0021

0021

0272
0272

0272
0272

0489
0489
0489

0489
0522

0641
0641
0642
0642
0642

0642

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED 1/17/03
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES, FIN
HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( HES)
HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( HES)
HES RPT CS 3DP 1NR 1AM SAME
TI TLE
DP: DYSON, DAVI S, W LKEN;
NR: GUESS; AM GREEN
FN1: ZERQ( REV)
M NUTE( HES)
FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( FI N)
FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532
Schedul ed But Not Heard
FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532
Moved CSSB 25(FIN) Qut of
Commttee
M NUTE( FI N)
FIN RPT CS 5DP 1DNP 1NR NEW
TI TLE
DP: W LKEN, TAYLOR, HOFFNAN,
OLSQON,
STEVENS B; DNP: GREEN, NR:
BUNDE
FN1: ZERQ( REV)
COSPONSOR( S) : STEVENS G
DYSQN, SEEKI NS
RULES TO CALENDAR 3/ 31/ 2003
READ THE SECOND TI ME
FI N CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT
READ THE THI RD Tl ME CSSB
25(FIN)
COSPONSOR('S) : LI NCOLN

April 15, 2003



03/31/03 0642 (S) PASSED Y16 N1 E3

03/ 31/ 03 0643 (S) EFFECTI VE DATE(S) SAME AS
PASSAGE

03/ 31/ 03 0648 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 31/ 03 0648 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 25( FI N)

04/ 02/ 03 0729 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME -
REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 03 0729 (H) HES, FIN

04/ 02/ 03 0751 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): LYNN

04/ 11/ 03 0947 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): ROKEBERG

04/ 15/ 03 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SHEI LA PETERSQN, St aff

to Senator Gary W/ ken

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented CSSB 25(FIN) on behalf of the
sponsor, Senator Gary WIken, and answered questions from
committee nenbers.

DANI EL FAUSKE, Chief Executive O ficer and Executive Director

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Cor poration

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on CSSB 25(FIN) and answered
guestions fromcomrttee nenbers.

PAUL KAPANSKI, Director

Mort gage Qperati ons

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on CSSB 25(FIN) and answered
questions fromthe commttee.

MARK DONER, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about his willingness to serve on
the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion and answered
guestions fromthe commttee.

THOVAS LAMAL, Appoi ntee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 15, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Comm ssi on and answer ed
guestions fromthe commttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-34, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:04 p.m
Represent ati ves W son, Gatt o, Seat on, and Ci ssna.
Representatives Coghill and Kapsner arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

SB 25- TEACHERS' HOUSI NG AHFC LQANS

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 25(FIN), "An Act relating to the
acquisition of teachers’ housing by regional educat i onal
attendance areas and to teachers' housing |loan prograns in the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation; and providing for an
effective date."

Number 0104

SHEI LA PETERSON, Staff to Senator Gary WIken, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented CSSB 25(FIN) on behalf of the sponsor,
Senator Gary WIken, and she answered questions from commttee
menbers. She explained that CSSB 25(FIN) is designed to help
| ocal school districts attract and retain the best-qualified
t eachers. It establishes a new teacher housing |oan program
of fered through Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) that
allows an educator to purchase a honme wth a zero down paynent.

AHFC will offer this program in conjunction with its other
progr ans. For exanple, first time honebuyers would have the
same interest rate as the existing AHFC Program but with a zero
down paynent. In addition, CSSB 25(FIN) allows a Rural
Educati on Attendance Area (REAA) school district to construct,
own, or nmanage rental properties exclusively for teachers. A
public el enentary or secondary t eacher, counsel or,

adm nistrator, or provider of special education services would
be eligible for the zero down |oan program The loan is only
used one tinme for an owner occupied, single famly hone and the
i ndi vidual nmust neet the existing AHFC credit criteria.

Number 0226

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2003



M5. PETERSON told the commttee that the zero down teacher's
housi ng | oan program would sunset in five years, which would
allow AHFC and the Alaska State Legislature to evaluate the

program to see if they wish to continue it. She said when
Senator W I ken began |ooking at the program he was anazed at
what other states were offering to attract new teachers. Mor e

than two-thirds of Alaska s new teachers cone from out of state.
So in effect, Alaska's 53 school districts are conpeting agai nst
other states to attract the best educators for Al aska's kids.
O her states are offering teachers signing bonuses, and one
state offers down paynents of up to $20,000 for a home to
encourage its teachers to remain in the comunity.

Nunmber 0308

M5. PETERSON explained that as the bill went through comittee
it was anended to allow REAAs to own and construct teacher
housi ng. This addition was added in the Senate Finance
Committee to ensure that the existing program that was passed
| ast year would work as intended. Last session the legislature
established a rural housing loan program for multi-famly
resi dences, exclusively for public school teachers. The Lower
Kuskokwi m School District expressed an interest to AHFC, but
under current |aw an REAA does not have authority to own or

construct a rental wunit. So, SB 25 allows REAAs to construct,
acquire, and mnage rental hones for teachers. Those people
will have to apply through AHFC and qualify just the sanme as
other Dborrowers for this program This particular program
offers a 1 percent reduction in the interest rate for nmulti-
famly residences for teacher rentals. The legislation states

that no state public funds or the foundation fornmula can be used
for the purchase of a hone.

Nunmber 0406

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that there had been sone
confusion as to who could use this program He asked if REAAs
are all exclusively rural school districts or all school
districts.

MS. PETERSON responded that REAAs are not all rural districts.
She said there are 19 REAAs within 53 school districts and those
are school districts that are within an unorganized borough.
These are school districts that do not have taxing authority and
are not required to pay the formula requirenent for education.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if [the bill] only applies to REAAs.

M5. PETERSON said no. One portion of the bill that was added in
the Senate Finance Conmttee only applies to REAAs. An REAA
school district can enter into a |oan agreenent with AHFC to

purchase or construct multi-famly residences for rental. The
other portion of the bill, which is Senator WIken's main focus
of the bill, offers a zero down |oan program for teachers.

These are teachers who are working in public schools; the
program woul d assist them so they can get into a hone and settle
down in a local comunity wthout having to [provide] the
conventional $10,000 to $20,000 down paynent. This portion of
the bill is only for an individual teacher.

Nunber 0517

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that the zero down paynent plan
for individual teachers does not matter where that individual

lives in the state. The teacher can be in Kenai, Bethel,
Fai r banks, or anywhere in the state. He asked if that was
correct.

M5. PETERSON said correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the other portion of the bill deals
with multi-famly dwellings and is only for REAAs.

VMS. PETERSON replied that is correct.
Nunber 0557

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Peterson if a teacher who has
been renting an apartnment for ten years in a conmunity and wants
to buy a hone woul d be excl uded or incl uded.

M5. PETERSON said if the teacher had never purchased a hone
under the zero down paynent plan, that teacher would be
i ncl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO turned attention to the REAA portion of the
bill, and he said the sponsor statenent does not nention the
word "construct."” He asked for clarification.

M5. PETERSON explained that is her interpretation; if an REAA
chooses to get a loan through AHFC through the teacher housing
| oan program they would be able to construct the building. M.
Pet erson said Dan Fauske woul d be able to answer that question.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it would be the district or
t eacher who woul d do the constructing.

M5. PETERSON pointed out that there are two different types of
|l oans in the bill. The teacher-housing loan with a zero down
paynent is for the individual teacher. The other |oan program
in which the housing is owed and managed by REAAs is a district
run program If a district did choose to construct rental
units, it would subcontract with sonmeone else to construct the
bui | di ng.

Number 0690

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON cl arified one point about REAAs' authority
to construct housing. He said |anguage found in the bill on
page 1, lines 11-12, provides for REAAs to construct housing for
rentals to teachers.

MS. PETERSON said correct; this is the |anguage that was added
to the general powers of an REAA.

Nunber 0757

CHAIR WLSON asked if it is true that the REAA portion of this
bill is really a correction of an oversight from |ast year's
bill.

MS. PETERSON replied that |ast year Senator Dave Donley had a
rural housing loan program bill that was nodified, and one of
the sections he added at the request of another senator was to
offer a teacher housing |loan program for nmulti-famly residences
for teacher rentals that could be used in rural areas in which
teacher housing is limted. The established programallowed a 1
percent reduction to the loan, setup a definition for multi-
famly housing, and stipulated that the program could only be
used for teachers. If the units were rented to soneone el se

then there would be a change in the interest rate. The program
was designed for rural comrunities and only for educators. The
problem is that REAAs do not have the authority to do that, she
expl ai ned. So, SB 25 was anended by Senator WIken at the
request of Senator Lyman Hoffrman to allow REAAs the authority to
enter into contracts to construct or otherw se acquire housing
that could be used for teacher rentals. Senator WIken was
concerned about the nonies used for this program so it was also
anended in the Senate Finance Commttee to prohibit the use of
state foundation dollars in this program

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2003



Number 0907

CHAIR WLSON said the reason the bill was passed |ast year was
because there were certain areas of the state that were having a
very difficult tinme getting teachers to live and work in their
comuni ties. She said this bill does not really help lure
teachers out into those rural areas because with this bil
teachers anywhere can get either cheaper rent or a school
district nmay even be allowed to give the teacher a place to
stay. This bill is really leveling the playing field because a
teacher anywhere in the state, if it is their first hone, can
get a loan with a zero down paynent.

V5. PETERSON replied that she does not believe that is a correct
interpretation of the effect of the bill. She said she believes
this bill will nake it nore desirable for teachers to go into
the rural communities. Currently, she said there are no hones
avail able for teachers in sonme rural comunities. This bill
will allow REAAs to build a nmultiple housing unit, so that there
is a stable housing facility for teachers. Ms. Peterson said
the zero down paynent plan really applies to the nore urban
communities. She summarized that allowng REAAS to own and
construct rural housing is a beginning in addressing the need in
rural areas.

Number 1008

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if REAAs currently own facilities or
if this a new duty that they will be taking on. He asked if
rural schools are owned by the state or by REAAsS?

M5. PETERSON replied that she is not sure. She said perhaps
Representati ve Kapsner knows the answer to that question. Ms.
Pet erson said when funds are appropriated for new schools to be
built, they are built by the REAAs, but she did not know who
owns the buil dings.

CHAIR WLSON commented that the housing situation is different

in every school district across the state. Sonme schoo
districts offer housing at a nuch cheaper rate than the teachers
could get anywhere el se. O her school districts have housing
that is very expensive, as high as $1,200 per nonth. Some

districts provide the superintendent with a house to live in.
She said when she lived in Tok the school system there had
housing for the teachers, but there was no electricity or
runni ng water.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2003



Nunmber 1156

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER agreed wth Chair WIson that the
situation varies by district. For instance, each village in the
Lower Kuskokw m School District has houses that can be rented
and many of them are substandard, which is one of the reasons it
is difficult to keep teachers. There really is no option to buy
a house there or in nost villages, she said. A lot of teachers
are stuck paying very high rent for older, inadequate housing.
She told the conmittee it is interesting to see the fights that
go on within the school over who gets which apartnment or house
to rent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is in support of the concept, but
he would like to know if the REAAs are actually owners of the
bui | di ngs or whether the state owns the buildings and the REAAs
are managi ng them

CHAIR WLSON comrented that perhaps individuals from AHFC coul d
answer that question.

Nunber 1275

DANI EL FAUSKE, Chief Executive Oficer and Executive Director,
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation, Departnent of Revenue,

testified in support of CSSB 25(FIN). He said this bill

authorizes REAAs to enter into a loan arrangenent with AHFC
under normal wunderwiting criteria. In reference to who owns
the facilities, he said he would assunme it would be the state in
a relationship they have wth REAA He said one of the

questions that came up was do REAAs have the authority to bond.
Most school districts in the incorporated areas hold el ections
and bond, but REAAs do not have that authority. He expl ai ned
that this bill wll allow REAAs to cone to AHFC with a plan to
build a facility and the corporation would analyze the plan
under nor nmal underwiting «criteria to check the revenue
generated by rents from the teachers and determne if it is
sufficient to support the overall costs of the project once it
is conpleted. M . Fauske asked who owns the school facilities
i n REAAs.

Number 1350
PAUL KAPANSKI, Director, Mrtgage Operations, Al aska Housing

Finance Corporation, testified via teleconference on CSSB
25(FI'N) . M. Kapanski said he does not know what the ownership

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 15, 2003



is on school facilities in REAAs, but he assunes that the REAA
would own it. He reiterated that is only an assunption on his
part.

MR. FAUSKE explained that in a normal situation a group would
approach AHFC with a business plan or nmnmulti-famly loan to
either buy or build a ten-plex, for exanple. M . Kapanski and
his staff would anal yze that docunentation, and dependi ng on the
size, determne whether it fit into the criteria in which [M.
Fauske] would have the authority to sign off on it or if it

woul d have to go to the board. In that case, there would be a
public hearing and the board of directors would nake a
determ nati on. The project would be based on its financial

feasibility, and AHFC would enter into an agreenent wth the
REAA based on the fact that it would be constructing or
purchasing a unit for the sole purpose of housing teachers.
Under normal circunstances, AHFC would hold that note and woul d
be the creditor on that transaction. This is what AHFC does
with any entity, single famly, corporation, conpany, or
i ndi vi dual that cones to AHFC.

Number 1408

CHAIR WLSON said she assumes under these circunstances REAA
woul d be the owner of the buildings. She told the committee the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent will be advising
menbers on the ownership of school facilities in REAAs. Chair
Wl son said the state would not be responsible for the | oans and
if the state is not responsible for them then the REAAs bear
the full responsibility. She pointed out an issue these
contracts would face. For exanple, since REAAs are not boroughs
and don't have a tax base and cannot wuse noney from the
foundation fornula, the contract would have to be very tight to
ensure that REAAs have enough teachers to fill those wunits,
otherwise the REAAs will default. Chair WI1son suggested that
in times of decreasing enrollnent that could be serious trouble.
She noted that many districts are |laying teacher off.

MR. FAUSKE said he thought this is a good piece of |egislation
but it would not fix everything. He said this is a great start
in the right direction, because the biggest inpedinent that
people in this inconme level is the down paynent. Under current
state law, AHFC is not allowed to do 100 percent |oan to val ue.
The highest value AHFC can go in certain situations is 95-97
percent, and then the borrower has to cone up with the remaining
3-5 percent. For many individuals that is difficult, especially
a young single person or a couple comng out of college wth

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 15, 2003



student loans to pay off. Trying to get started with a teaching
salary, takes sonme time to build up funds. He said this bill
does a |l ot towards hel ping to solve this problem

Nunmber 1543

MR. FAUSKE told the conmmittee this is also a nationw de problem
He said he was just in Washington, D.C. and there was a simlar
debate with legislators there about issues related to teacher
housing and the recruitnment and retention of teachers. He said
AHFC prepared a paper that he would send to the commttee for
revi ew. It is not conplete, he said but AHFC got as far as
possible in ternms of laying out information gathered from nine
of the twelve different school districts polled about the nunber
of teachers. M. Fauske agreed with Chair WIson that what
different school districts do with respect to housing varies.
The problem AHFC is encountering is trying to wite a |oan that
takes into consideration people who do not live in the comunity
year round, coupled with salaries that are not in line with what
construction costs are. He said it has been a rural phenonena,
but AHFC is seeing nore of it in urban areas as construction
costs go up and salaries are not conmensurate with rising costs.
M. Fauske explained that AHFC s seeing that gap 1in
affordability w den, SO soneone going into the teaching
profession either has to do sonmething else or have a difficult
time qualifying for the | oans.

Nunmber 1629

CHAIR WLSON said according to the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnment the school district would own the facility.

CHAIR WLSON asked if AHFC could set up a contract that would
accommodate the fact that teachers only get paid for nine nonths
per year. She asked if, for exanple, a nortgage of $100, 000
required nonthly paynments of $1,000, could AHFC set wup the
contract to allow nonthly paynents of $1,200 per nonth for nine
nont hs a year.

MR. FAUKSE replied that that kind of a contract is possible. He
said, for exanple, AHFC would analyze under the underwiting
criteria the cash flow amobunt, the rent being paid, and what is
done when teachers are not paying. Some districts pay teachers
year round at a reduced anmobunt. AHFC woul d anal yze the revenue
comng into the REAA and then determne the feasibility of the
proj ect.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2003



Nunber 1706

MR. KAPANSKI agreed with M. Fauske's coments. He said what
AHFC | ooks at in analyzing any nmulti-famly project is the cash
flow and the timng of cash flow based on offsetting the
expenses. AHFC tries to structure paynents around the cash
flow.

CHAIR WLSON said she was really thinking of the individual
teacher loans with no down paynent. She asked if AHFC would
craft a teacher's paynents for the nine nonths per year by
adj usting the other paynents slightly higher.

MR. KAPANSKI replied that is not sonething AHFC s system is set
up to do. He said those who own their own honme are usually
staying in the community and doing sonething else during those
nont hs to support the hone.

MR, FAUSKE told the conmttee that in the case of individual
home ownership, the loan would be based on the ability to pay

twel ve nonths a year. Wth an REAA arrangenent, he said it
would be up to them to determne how they will set up rental
paynments with teachers. There could be a potential subsidy
involved or sone time of reduced rent over the summer. REAAs

would have to present AHFC with a plan on cash flow and
determ ne who woul d pay under nornmal standards.

Nunmber 1798

CHAIR WLSON said if this bill passes, AHFC will be flooded with
teachers who will want to buy a house with no down paynent. She
explained that there are a lot of teachers in this state that
are not able to own their own homes and this would make it
avail able. She asked M. Kapanski why AHFC cannot setup a nine-
nonth paynment plan. Chair WIson asked if it is because AHFC s
conputers are not setup for that kind of paynment plan.

MR. KAPANSKI said if a teacher has sufficient incone for nine
nonths of the year to qualify for a |loan, AHFC would have to
underwite a |loan based on that nine nonths worth of income for
a certain anmount. Once the teacher qualifies based on that nine
nont hs of inconme, then he or she should have the ability to nake
paynments year round on the | oan.

Nunber 1852

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2003



MR. FOUSKE replied that it really cones down to what the teacher
makes and what can he or she afford. For exanple, he said if an
i ndi vi dual buys a car, even if you are a teacher and only work
nine nmonths per year, the teacher is still driving the car
twel ve nont hs and maki ng paynents twel ve nonths per year

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that this seened really easy.
For exanple, he said if an individual owes $500 with paynents of
$100 per nonth for five nmonths, and instead pays $125 for the
first four nonths, there is still a balance in the account of
$100 even if no paynment is made in the fifth nonth. So, he said
if teachers pay enough in nine nonths so there is a balance to
cover the other three nonths, it does not seem to take nuch
bookkeeping to achieve this. The balance is applied to the
outstanding debt for the next three nonths and everything is
even at the end of the year, he suggested.

CHAIR WLSON replied that that arrangenent would not work
because the extra noney would go towards the principal. She
said if the legislature is going to have a program for teachers,
she would like to see a paynent plan that takes into account the
fact that teachers work nine nonths a year. She suggested that
paynments should be easier for nine nonths per year and provide
three nonths off while the teacher is not working. Chair WIson
reiterated that the anpbunt would be the sanme per year, but the
paynment plan woul d acconmmpdate the teacher's work schedule. She
pointed out that many teachers spread their salary across the
full twelve nonths, but sonme do not.

Nunber 1917

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON advised the conmttee that the salary
paynent selection is one every teacher can make. Teachers can
take a paynment either nine or twelve nonths per year. That

woul d be a personal choice. He told the commttee he does not
see this as a critical problem

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if it would be unconstitutional to
do this for teachers. She commented that she would | ove to have
her nortgage paynents due during session when she nakes nore
noney, but AHFC will not do it.

Nunber 1961
MR. FAUSKE replied that he supports trying to help teachers, and

that is not the issue for AHFC He said he is not sure about
the constitutionality of the question either, but this would

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 15, 2003



enter a dangerous zone wth respect to normal underwiting
criteria and conventional |oans. Teachers buy hones all the
time under the prevailing system He said as far as being
swanped with teacher |oans, he hopes that is the case because
that is business to the corporation. This bill makes it easier
for teachers to purchase a hone based on affordability and
commensurate sal ari es. M. Fauske prom sed the commttee that
AHFC woul d have a conversation about seasonal paynents. He said
this question has been asked before by fishernmen that have a bad
season. He said it gets difficult to forgive principal and
interest, and he may be wong but he believed the corporation is
forbidden to forgive the interest under |aw, but there can be
some arrangenents or concessions on principal paynents. It also
depends on the funding criteria, for exanple, if the corporation
is trying to sell bonds to fund a program what m ght be gained
in sinplicity or ease for the ultinmate consumer, the corporation
| oses in costs that are paid because the risk is increased for

the investor. He said AHFC wants to provide the best program
possible to assist teachers. He reiterated that the corporation
wll ook at the possibility of a nine-nonth paynent plan.

Nunber 2046

CHAIR WLSON commented that the House Finance Committee could
|l ook into that issue. She said the question remains before the
commttee as to whether nenbers want to support a program that
woul d give teachers an opportunity to purchase a hone with a
zero down paynent, and whether the REAAs should be allowed to
take advantage of the program offered in |ast year's
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification with respect to
REAAS. He said in organized boroughs the boroughs own the
schools, not the school districts. He said he does not want to
pass legislation that places obligations and duties on REAAs
that are outside of their current role wthout everyone know ng
full well that this is happening. He asked for clarification.
He said Chair Wlson's comments were well spoken with respect to
the REAAs ability to make paynments if the rental units are
vacant for a period of tine.

Number 2118
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSSB 25(FIN) out of

commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 15, 2003



Nunber 2124

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ected for purposes of discussion. He
said whether it 1is a fisherman, police officer, fireman,
correctional officer, or other group that is struggling wth
enpl oynent retention, this is an inportant discussion and policy
cal l. Representative Coghill offered an exanple, in the past,
whenever there was a discussion in comrittee about an exception
to allowabl e absences for the permanent fund dividend, for every
one that was allowed, there were six nore waiting. Thi s
commttee could be doing that as well wth this piece of
| egi sl ati on, he suggest ed. He said he does not have a clear
understanding of the nmechanism involved, and he has sone
guestions about Section 4. Representative Coghill told the
commttee he would like to get a brief explanation before the
vot e.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Fauske if the reference to
"other borrowers” in Section 3 is related to the proposed [ Sec.
18.56.109]. He asked who the "other borrowers" are.

Nunmber 2223

MR. FAUSKE replied that "other borrowers"” refers to the REAAs, a
conpany, vVvillage corporation, or other entity that mght enter
into an arrangenent wth the REAA to build a facility to house
t eachers. For instance, he said if a village corporation built
housing for teachers, they wuld own and be allowed to
participate in the loan program as long as the tenants were
restricted to teachers.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if that would also satisfy the
variety of other individuals who would want to conme into this
type of a | ending situation.

MR. FAUSKE responded that he did not know if this |anguage woul d
satisfy other individuals. He said he does not believe he could
address that issue. M. Fauske said he is not in a position to
address the legality of creating a |ending program specifically
for teachers. When discussions with respect to policenen,
firenmen, and others have conme up, AHFC has always been referred
to HUDs (U S. Departnent of Housing and Urban Devel opnent)
program cal l ed the "good nei ghbor program" The advantage that
HUD has is it has an inventory and it can take from that
inventory and designate certain houses in a particular area to
be specifically for public safety officers.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- April 15, 2003



Nunber 2284

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that M. Fauske brings up the
very point he would like to discuss. He said what happens if
for sonme reason an REAA takes a |loan and builds a house for
teacher housing, and at sonme point in the future that REAA makes
the decision to put all of its noney into a regional |earning

center. They now have teacher housing that will no |onger be
fulfilling that purpose, he said. He asked M. Fauske what
woul d happen to the | oan.

MR. FAUSKE responded that AHFC wll Ilend noney after due
di I i gence has been performed on the application submtted to the
cor poration. He said one of the points that will be addressed

is does this fit wthin the |egal paraneters that the
| egi sl ature established about who can borrow the noney, for what
reason, and does it have the cash flow Any change down the
road woul d have to be discussed with the corporation if it has a
negative effect on their ability to service the |oan. He said
this is what AHFC does everyday.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed that was an economc factor that

AHFC would look at as it reviewed the plan. He said another
point that he would l|ike to address is the question of
desi gnati ng val ue. In sone communities it is very difficult to

do because there is no way to regain the value of the property
under default circunstances, he suggested. He asked M. Fauske
to explain how this problemis addressed.

Number 2359

MR. FAUSKE explained that the value is established by how much
is spent in trying to devel op sonething and how much revenue can
be generated to pay for it. In other words, he said there are
"X" nunber of apartnents and the teachers wll occupy these
apartnents, school districts can certainly nake it a condition
of enploynent that the teachers will live in teacher housing
then AHFC will analyze that based on the anmpunt of nopney coni ng
in versus what the paynents are. That is what is |ooked at with
respect to loan criteria, he said.

TAPE 03-34, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he understood what AHFC will pay for
val ue, but he didn't see that in statute.

Number 2340

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 15, 2003



MR. KAPANSKI agreed with M. Fauske's conments. He said in al

| oans AHFC engages an appraiser, and it is up to the appraiser
to determ ne value and whether it is conparable to the immedi ate
area or conparable in another geographic area. Wien it is new
construction the appraiser |ooks at construction costs or at
ot her conparabl es or market sales. He told the commttee there
are experienced appraisers out in rural narket areas. He said
AHFC relies on the [experienced appraiser's] determnation of
t he val ue.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he knew under prudent |oan criteria,
AHFC will not loan on sonething that |ooks good for the first
three years and then becomes so costly it becones an al batross.

Number 2311

MR. FAUSKE agreed with Representative Coghill. He said if AHFC
is selling bonds to generate the funds to support this program
it does no good unless AHFC is professional and top of the |ine
in what is done or the corporation wll be quickly be shut off
fromWall Street in terns of issuing bonds.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he still questioned the 100 percent
value of the property. He said it can still be very subjective
in sonme areas of the state, and even though there is a
depreciated value of the house and noney, the resale value is
not hi ng conpared to those two values in sone areas of the state.

MR. FAUSKE agreed with Representative Coghill. He expl ai ned
that AHFC was trying to conme up with a way to build [housing] in
many of the rural areas. ldeally, he said there would be a rea
estate market that is flourishing with the normal buying and
selling of a property. Unfortunately, he said in sonme areas
that does not exist because there is no inventory. In this
situation AHFC is entering into an arrangenment, and in order to
help recruit and retain teachers, an REAA under nornal
underwriting criteria can cone up with plan to build a unit in
which it houses teachers to bring theminto their region. It is
a unique structure in that community, he said.

Number 2233
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he knew there was a notion still

pending, but he would like to talk to the sponsor about the
section to be repealed and the effective date in 2008.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she really appreciates Senator

Wl ken sponsoring this bill and allowing the REAAs to
partici pate. She said this is such a big issue. She said she
did not question the legality of the bill because she believed

it was the state's responsibility to educate kids. She said in
many of these communities teachers are hesitant to go to rura
areas, and [the condition of the living areas] can nake it
difficult to retain teachers.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said her father was a principal in
Tuntutuliak and her famly lived in a tiny house with no carpet
or furniture, beds that were nmade out of plywod, and no running
wat er or bathroom facilities. She said the place was not fit
for human habitation. She told the commttee her father stuck
wth it and her famly Ilived in the house for tw years.
Represent ati ve Kapsner said she believed this will go a |ong way
in being able to recruit and retain teachers. She said it is
the right thing to do.

Nunmber 2166
The conmittee took an at-ease from3:59 p.m to 4:04 p. m

CHAIR WLSON said she would like to hold the bill over wunti
Tuesday. She said she wanted the bill to pass and believed the
commttee was in agreenent. She suggested that teachers were in
short supply all over the nation, but the nursing shortage was
actually worse than the teachi ng shortage.

Number 2137

MR. FAUSKE told the conmittee that there is a $4.3 million line
item in the AHFC capital budget for rural teacher/health
pr of essi onal housi ng. He said he asked the board to put that
in, and he noted that AHFC put in $8 nmillion |ast year. He said
he was persistent, even though there was no program in place,
because he knew there was a great need, not just for teachers,
but also for health professionals. He said after AHFC submtted
its budget to OWMB [Ofice of Mnagenment & Budget], the
Governor's Ofice called him and asked his feelings on adding

health professionals to that line item He told the governor's
office that he whol e-heartedly supported it and that the board
woul d as well. He summarized by saying that there is support

for adding the nursing profession to the program

CHAIR WLSON comented that this commttee has a responsibility
not just to education, but also to health and social services.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 15, 2003



So, she said it wuld be in the conmmttee's scope of
responsibility to address this issue. She shared data about the
i ncreased need of health care professionals between [2003] and
2007. She said Alaska wll need 4,100 nore nurses than are
currently here and that there is a vacancy rate of 11.5 percent.

CHAIR WLSON announced that the bill would be held until next
Tuesday.

Nunber 2052

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON withdrew his notion to nove CSSB 25(FIN)
out of commttee.

MR. FAUSKE added that he is on the School of Nursing Advisory
Board and his nother was a nurse, so he knows what the commttee
is dealing with.

[ CSSB 25(FI'N) was hel d over. ]

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssi on Appoi nt ees

Number 2027

CHAIR WLSON announced that the conmittee would consider the
governor's appointees to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssi on. The candidates, Mark Doner of Palner and Thonmas
Lamal of Fairbanks, would testify via teleconference. Chai r
Wlson asked M. Doner to provide a brief statenent to the
committee.

Nunber 1984

MARK DONER, Appointee to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, testified. He said he was wlling to serve the
State of Alaska by helping to define and enforce the ethics of
those in the teaching profession. He said he believed teaching
was one of the nobst inportant public service professions that
af fect youth in Al aska.

Nunmber 1969

CHAIR WLSON asked M. Doner to tell the commttee about his
background in Al aska.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 15, 2003



MR. DONER said he is the grandson of a honesteader, and he
graduated from high school in Anchorage and attended college in
Montana. He said after working as an engi neer he found that he
| i ked working with people, so he went back to college to get his
teaching certificate. He said he taught and coached at both
Wasilla H gh School and Colony H gh School, and he is currently
a cross-country coach

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Doner if he is any good at
coachi ng cross-country runni ng.

MR. DONER said he is not sure if he is good at it, but his
at hl et es have done wel | .

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that sonme of those athletes
have gone on to do well in universities across the country.

MR. DONER said Representative Gatto's daughter ran for him for
four years, and she has done wel|l.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO told the conmttee that he had known M.
Doner for over 20 years, and believed he was a good candi date
for the appointnent.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL thanked M. Doner for his willingness to
take the tine to serve on the conm ssion.

Number 1895
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO nade a notion to advance the appoi nt nent of

Mark Doner from conmttee. There being no objection, the
confirmation of Mark Doner was advanced.

Nunber 1847

THOVAS LAMAL, Appointee to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, testified. He offered a brief history of his
service to Alaska, and he told nenbers he had been teaching in
Fai rbanks for 13 years. He said he believed this would be a

great opportunity to learn about Alaska's laws regarding
education and to have input as to how they are adm nistered. He
said he believed he could nmake fair decisions, and he is | ooking
forward to working with the conm ssion.

Nunber 1826

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Lamal if he had the opportunity
to | ook at what was expected as a comm ssioner?

MR. LAVAL replied that he had an opportunity to talk with sone
of the individuals who serve on the conmi ssi on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if there was anything he'd like to
see inproved systemcally or if he thought there should be
changes made to the conmi ssion's goals.

MR. LAMAL said he didn't want to coment, since it was his first
day.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that is why he asked, and often

| egislators believe they'Il be able to change things in the
first week. Representative Coghill said he believed M. Lamnal
will bring the classroom perspective to the comm ssion, which is

so inportant. He said many tines appointees are asked to be the
judge without understanding the circunstances that individuals
wor k in. He thanked M. Lamal for his wllingness to serve on
t he conm ssi on.

Nunber 1757

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to advance the appointnment of Thomas
Lamal from commttee. There being no objection, t he
confirmati on of Thomas Lanmal was advanced.

Nunber 1739

The committee took an at-ease at 4:15 p.m to prepare for a
briefing from the Dvision of Public Health on Severe Acute
Respiratory Syndrone (SARS). [End of Tape 03-34.]

SARS UPDATE

NOTE: The neeting was recorded but no |log notes were taken. A
copy of a separate tape for the SARS update, |abeled Tape 03-
34A, may be obtained by contacting the House Records Ofice at
State Capitol, Room 3, Juneau, Al aska 99801 (nmiling address),
(907) 465-2214, and after adjournnent of the second session of
the Twenty-Third Alaska State Legislature this information may
be obtained by contacting the Legislative Reference Library at
(907) 465-3808.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 15, 2003



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adj ourned at an unspecified tine.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 15, 2003



